






























SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Settlement Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into among the United States of 

America, acting through the United States Department of Justice and on behalf of the United 

States Drug Enforcement Administration ("DEA") (collectively the "United States"), and 

Danville Regional Medical Center, LLC, d/b/a SOV AH Health Danville ("SOVAH Danville"), 

(hereinafter coUectively referred to as ''the Parties"), through their authorized representatives. 

Recitals 

A. SOY AR Danville is a hospital system and a Virginia company with its principal 

place of business in Danville, Virginia. SOY AH Danville conducts business in Danville, 

Virginia, by dispensing prescription drugs, including controlled substances, patients in both an 

inpatient and outpatient setting. SOV AH Danville, at all times relevant to the Covered Conduct 

discussed herein, was registered with the DEA and is assigned a unique DEA registration number 

that authorized the pharmacy to dispense controlled substances pursuant to the provisions of the 

Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 801 et seq. ("the CSA"), and its implementing 

regulations. 

B. The DEA is the component agency of the United States Department of Justice 

primarily responsible for administering the CSA and is responsible for investigating violations of 

the Act. The CSA regulates persons and companies that manufacture, distribute and dispense 

controlled substances in order to prevent diversion, and the CSA aims to protect the public's 

health and safety from dangers posed by highly addictive or dangerous controlled substances that 

are diverted into the i1Iicit market, while also ensuring that patients have access to pharmaceutical 

controlled substances for legitimate medical purposes. Entities that dispense controlled 
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substances are required to have a valid DEA registration number and are referred to as 

"registrants." Among other preventive measures, DEA registrants must comply with various 

recordkeeping requirements. Remedies resulting from violations of the CSA or its regulations (21 

C.F.R.§1300.01 et seq.) include civil penalties. 

C. SOV AH Danville acknowledges that, at all times relevant to the Covered 

Conduct discussed herein, it was required to comply with the CSA and the regulations 

promulgated thereunder. 

D. The United States contends that it has certain civil and/or administrative claims 

under the CSA and its implementing regulations against SOV AH Danville. Specifically, the 

United States contends that, between 2017 and 2020, SOV AH Danville violated the CSA 

and its implementing regulations, including without limitation by: 

• Unlawfully dispensing a controlled substance in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 
842(a)(2), as well as 21 C.F.R. § 1305.15, on at least 502 occasions. 

• SOY AH Danville failed to provide effective controls and procedures to guard 
against diversion of controlled substances in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 823, as 
wen as 21 C.F.R. § 1301.7l(a); 

• SOY AH Danville filled orders for controlled substances without designing and 
operating a system to disclose suspicious orders of controlled substances in 
violation of21 U.S.C. § 832(a)(l), as well as 21 C.F.R. § 1301. 74{a)-{b); and 

• SOY AH Danville failed to maintain readily retrievable records of controlled 
substances in violation of21 U.S.C. § 827(b), as well as 21 C.F.R. § 1304.4(h). 

The United States' claims and allegations against SOV AH Danville under the CSA and its 

implementing regulations also incmporate by reference the Agreed Facts attached as Addendum 

A. All of the information as set forth above in this Paragraph D as well as in Addendum A shall 
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hereinafter be referred to as the "Covered Conduct." 

E. This Agreement is neither an admission of liability by SOV AH Danville, nor a 

concession by the United States that its claims are not well founded. Nothing in this 

Agreement is an admission by the United States that the amounts paid by SOV AH Danville 

are the maximum amounts that could, in the absence of this Agreement, be recovered from 

SOV AH Danville, nor does this Agreement constitute an admission by SOV AH Danville 

that the amounts paid reflect the financial liability the government could have established at 

trial. 

F. To avoid the delay, uncertainty, inconvenience, and expense of protracted 

litigation of the above claims, and in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations 

of this Settlement Agreement, the Parties agree and covenant to the Terms of Agreement 

below. 

Tums of Agreement 

1. SOV AH Danville shall pay the United States Four Million Three Hundred 

Sixty-Six Thousand Dollars ($4,366,000.00) (the "Settlement Amount''), which shall be paid 

no later than fourteen (14) business days after the Effective Date of this Agreement. Payment 

of the Settlement Amount shall be by electronic funds transfer in accordance with written 

instructions from the Office of the United States Attorney. 

2. Subject to the exceptions in Paragraph 5 (concerning excluded claims) herein, 

and conditioned upon SOV AH Danville's full payment of the Settlement Amount under this 

agreement, the United States releases SOV AH Danville from any civil or administrative 

claim the United States has for the Covered Conduct. 
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3. This Agreement in no way alters or restricts the United States' right to enforce 

the CSA and regulations promulgated thereunder by commencing an administrative or civil 

action against SOV AH Danville for any conduct that does not arise from the Covered 

Conduct or that occurs after the Effective Date of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement, 

however, waives or limits SOVAH Danville's right or ability to raise any defenses to such an 

action. 

4. The obligations imposed upon SOV AH DanviJle pursuant to this Agreement are 

in addition to, and not in derogation of, obligations imposed upon SOV AH Danville pursuant 

to any federal, state or local law, including without limitation the CSA and the regulations 

promulgated thereunder. 

5. Notwithstanding the releases given in Paragraph 2 of this Agreement, or any 

other term of this Agreement, the following claims of the United States are specifica11y 

reserved and are not released by this Agreement: 

a. Any liability arising under Title 26, U.S. Code (Internal Revenue Code); 

b. Any criminal liability; 

c. Except as explicitly stated in this Agreement, any administrative 

liability; 

d. Any liability to the United States (or its agencies) for any conduct other 

than the Covered Conduct; 

e. Any liability based upon obligations created by this Agreement; 

f. Any liability of individuals. 

6. SOV AH Danville fully and finally releases the United States, its agencies, 
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employees, servants, and agents from any claims (including attorneys' fees, costs, and 

expenses of every kind and however denominated) which SOV AH Danville could have 

asserted, or may assert in the future against the United States, its agencies, employees, 

servants, and agents, related to the Covered Conduct, or arising from the United States' 

investigation and resolution of claims based upon the Covered Conduct. 

7. SOV AH Danville waives and shall not assert any defenses it may have to any 

criminal prosecution or administrative acti~n relating to the Covered Conduct that may be 

based in whole or in part on a contention that, under the Double Jeopardy Clause in the Fifth 

Amendment of the Constitution, or under the Excessive Fines Clause in the Eighth 

Amendment of the Constitution, this Agreement bars a remedy sought in such crim1nal 

prosecution or administrative action. Nothing in this paragraph or any other provision of this 

Agreement constitutes an agreement by the United States concerning the characterization of 

the Settlement Amount for purposes of the Internal Revenue laws, Title 26 of the United 

States Code. 

8. This Agreement is intended to be for the benefit of the Parties only. The Parties do 

not release any claims against any other person or entity. 

1 0. Each Party shall bear its own legal and other costs incurred in connection with this 

matter, including the preparation and performance of this Agreement. 

11. Each party and signatory to this Agreement represents that it freely and voluntarily 

enters into this Agreement without any degree of duress or compulsion. 

12. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States. The exclusive 

jurisdiction and venue for any dispute relating to this Agreement is the United States District 
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Court for the Western District of Virginia. For purposes of construing this Agreement, this 

Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by all Parties to this Agreement and shall not, 

therefore, be construed against any Party for that reason in any subsequent dispute. 

13. This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement between the Parties. This 

Agreement may not be amended except by written consent of the Parties. 

14. The undersigned counsel represent and warrant that they are fully authorized to 

execute this Agreement on behalf of the persons and entities indicated below. 

IS. This Agreement shall become final and binding onJy upon signing by all 

parties hereto. 

16. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall constitute an original and all of which shall together constitute one and the same 

agreement, and for pUiposes of this agreement, facsimile signatures shall be treated as 

equivalent to originals. 

17. This Agreement is binding on SOV AH Danville's successors, transferees, heirs, 

and assigns. 

18. The Parties consent to the United States' disclosure of this Agreement, and 

information about this Agreement, to the public. 

19. This Agreement is effective on the date of signature of the last signatory to the 

Agreement ("Effective Date" of this Agreement). Facsimiles and electronic transmissions of 

signatures shall constitute acceptable, binding signatures for purposes of this Agreement. 
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Dated: ___ _ 

Dated: ___ _ 

CHRISTOPHER R. KAVANAUGH 
UnitP.tt State.~ Attorney 

Digitally signed by 
~ JUSTIN LUGAR 
~ Date: 2022.06.08 

0~l0.:44.dl4'00' 
Justin M. Lugar 
Assistant United States Attorney 
3101st Street SW, Room 906 
Roanoke, VA 24011 
Counsel for the United States 
JAROD Digitally signed by 

JAROD FORGET 

Fo RG ET Date: 2022.06.08 
09:17:51 -04'00' 

Jarod A. Forget 
Special Agent in Charge 
Washington, DC Division 
Drug Enforcement Administration 
800 K Street, N.W. 
Suite500 
Washington, DC 20001 
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Dated: & / 6 /l.. '-

Dated: ' 17 /l..l_ 

SOV AH Danville 
142 South Main Street 
Danville, VA 24541 

~~ President 
Danville Regional Medical Center, LLC 
(d/b/a Sovah Health) 
Authorized Corporate Representative for 
SOV AH Danville 

;.James M. Cole 
Sidley Austin LLP 
1501 K Street N.W. 
Washington, DC 20005 
Counsel for SOYAH Danville 

Lisa S. Rivera 
Bass Berry Sims 
150 Third Ave, South Suite 2800 
Nashville, TN 37201 
Counsel for SOVAH Danville 

~f.~ 
Brenna E. Jenny 
Sidley Austin LLP 
1501 K Street N.W. 
Washington, DC 20005 
Counsel for SOVAH Danville 
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ADDENDUM A 

AGREED FACTS 

I. Sovah Health is a regional health care delivery system comprised of a hospital with two 
campuses - Danville and Martinsville. In 2017, Danville (fonnerly Danville Regional 
Medical Center) and Martinsville (fozmerly Memorial Hospital of Martinsville & Henry 
Cowity) united to form Sovah Health. 

2. Paulette Toller was a pharmacy technician at Sovah Health's Danville hospital (Sovah 
Health- Danville). From June 2017 to June 2019, Toller diverted and stole more than 
11,000 Schedule II controlled substances and more than 1,900 Schedule Ill and IV 
controlled substances from Sovah Health-Danville, exploiting a flaw in Sovah Health's 
computer system used to track controlled substances. Each time Toller diverted and stole 
controlled substances, she would enter the necessary information in Sovah Health -
Danville's computer system and indicate certain contro11ed substances were to be moved 
:from the central controlled substance storage location to a location that was in the system 
but that no longer was used by Sovah Health - Danville. As with a11 transfers of controlJed 
substances, a form was generated and printed with a sequential serial number. Such forms 
were required to be signed by two witnesses and returned and saved by Sovah Health -
Danville. In the instances when Toller diverted medications, she destroyed the forms and 
did not place the forms in the location where such forms were to be saved. During the time 
period of Toller's diversion at Sovah Health - Danville: 

a. No full physical inventory was conducted of Sovah Health-Danville's 
controlled substances which would have identified Toller's theft and diversion of 
controlled substances which she accomplished by exploiting the fact that a non­
utilized location remained in the computer system. 

b. Access to the pharmacy was controlled with a key card. In addition, because of 
the heightened risk of diversion of controlled substances, a key card was required 
to enter the controlled substances room within the pharmacy. However, a number 
of employees stated that the controlled substances room door was often propped 
open, defeating the requirement that a key card be used to access the room. 

c. Every time controlled substances were dispensed, a form was created with a 
sequential serial nwnber. Each fonn was stored in one of two binders - one for 
Schedule II controlled substances and one for all other controlled substances. No 
procedure was in place to ensure that forms were not missing, such as checking 
the sequential serial numbers on the forms in the two binders to see if a number 
was missing. 

d. To p.revent diversion, each transfer is required to be witnessed by someone other 
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than the person who was making the transfer. The witness is required to sign the 
transfer form. However, no one reviewed the transfer fonns to detennine if the 
transfers had, in fact, been witnessed. Several forms indicate transfers were not 
witnessed as they bear no signature of a witness. 

3. Emilee Poteat was a registered nurse who worked at Sovah Health - Danville. From 
January 2020 through May 2020, Poteat, on a daily basis {according to her), at Sovah 
Health- Danville, tim:ip~red with Schedule II controlled substances -- fentanyl vials and 
hydromorphone injectables and stole the active ingredients. Poteat used a syringe to 
remove the controlled substances .from their containers and, again using a syringe, 
replaced the eontrolled substances with saline. Toe tampered vials and injectables were 
then available to be administered by Sovah Health-Danville personnel to patients. 
Although no patient harm was reported, during the time period in which Poteat was 
tampering with drugs, Sovah Health employees administered medications to patients, 
even after seeing signs on some of the containers of possible tampering. 
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